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ADDENDUM ONE
DATE:

February 12, 2014
TO:

All Vendors 

FROM:
Nancy Storant/Pete Kroll/Kristi Kling, Buyers
State Purchasing Bureau 

RE:

Round One Questions and Answers for RFP Number 4611Z1
to be opened March 21, 2014 2:00 p.m. Central Time

Following are the questions submitted and answers provided for the above mentioned Request For Proposal.  The questions and answers are to be considered as part of the Request For Proposal.

 SEQ CHAPTER \h \r 1

	QUESTIONS
	ANSWERS

	1. Reference from RFP Page 1 Question Type Requirement

The requirements specified in the RFP are at a very high level and lack sufficient detail to allow us to estimate the work completely. Considering this, can we propose to execute this project in 2 phases – 
Phase 1 – Detailed Requirements Specification and documentation
Phase 2 – Design, Develop, Testing, Implementation, Hosting and Support
where, the cost and schedule estimates for Phase 2 will be determined and agreed upon after conclusion of Phase 1?   SEQ CHAPTER \h \r 1

 SEQ CHAPTER \h \r 1
	No, this request is for a comprehensive proposal. Requirements gathering and validation are expected to be a part of a proposal. Proposals should include each phase listed in the RFP, see Section IV.D, pages 49-66. The design phase requires the vendor to conduct Joint Application Development (JAD) sessions and perform other design steps (page 61). All phases of the project should be included in the cost as specified in the RFP through completion of Forms A.5 through A.8 of Attachment A.  

Further details of the current business practices and standards, including available data dictionaries and collection templates, addressed in this RFP may be found in the bidder library located at: http://dhhs.ne.gov/behavioral_health/Pages/behBiddersLibrary2014.aspx

	2. Reference from RFP Page 1 Question Type Requirement

Is the State open to a custom development solution?
	Yes. Please see Section IV.A.1, page 41, for the types of solutions the State will consider. 

	3. Question Type Requirement

In order to provide a proper estimate to develop a new system, we would like to understand the scope and complexity of the requirements. We need as much as information possible such as screen mockups, system requirements specifications, use case documents, business requirements documents, , interfacing requirements etc.

Without the above specified information it is very difficult for us to estimate, plan and propose a solution for this RFP. Hence we would appreciate if you can provide us all the above details.
	Proposals should meet the DHB CDS objectives listed in Section V.3.b, page 71.  Bidders should propose a solution that meets all the technical and functional requirements contained in the RFP and its attachments. As part of the technical approach, bidders are to include all representative components related to their solution.
Further details of the current business practices and standards, including available data dictionaries and collection templates, addressed in this RFP may be found in the bidder library located at: http://dhhs.ne.gov/behavioral_health/Pages/behBiddersLibrary2014.aspx
Please also see answer to Question 4 regarding interfacing requirements.

	4. Reference from RFP Page 41 Question Type Requirement
RFP states that "The DBH CDS must be capable of data collection from a variety of sources to facilitate ease of reporting, analytics, performance tracking, authorizations, billing reconciliations, and funding management for the Community Based Services section as funded through DBH, among other data analytics functions."
What are the possible sources of data for CDS? Also provide details regarding the data transmission modes available and interface methods available.
	Table 1 on page 46 provides current systems which serve as data sources. See also Figure 1 on page 47 for description of data sources.  

The message layer could be FTP, SFTP, HTTP/S, NDM, or other common protocols; the envelope layer and payload could be ANSI X12.5010 (HIPAA compliant), HL7, a proprietary data definition language or other common envelope protocols. 

Support for common message and envelope protocols and payloads consistent with secure, HIPPA compliant transaction processing, along with an ability to map payloads to the proposed CDS meta data structure, are expected.   

See item j). on page 72.

	5. Reference from RFP Page 41 Question Type Requirement

RFP states that "The DBH CDS must securely transmit and retrieve data on behalf of contracted providers, the State’s six Behavioral Health Regions (Regions), and other DHHS information systems."
Please provide more details on the solution being used to send data into CDS.
	There is not one complete, centralized data warehouse system currently in place.  This RFP is taking proposals for the development of a data warehouse system which can securely transmit and retrieve data on behalf of contracted providers, the State’s six Behavioral Health Regions (Regions), and other DHHS information systems (see Table 1 and Figure 1 in the RFP, pages 46 and 47, respectively).  
The current data system utilizes an Automated Programmatic Interface (API) between the current data system solution and select clinical practice management systems.

Inputs into the as-is system include manual entry, Excel CSV import, proprietary interfaces with clinical practice management and EHR systems using common data transmission protocols and a proprietary interface with the current data system contractor.  

Please also see answer to Question 4.

	6. Reference from RFP Page 41 Question Type Requirement

RFP states that "The DBH CDS must also provide authorizations and capabilities to perform reconciliation of billing and services provided in order to facilitate the distribution of public funds based on client eligibility determinations of services received."
Please provide more details on how this is done in the current system.
	The current authorization and billing reconciliation process is illustrated in Figure 2 on page 48 of the RFP. The authorization process is described further in the document titled the BHS-web-training-manual-11-2013 with further service and authorization criteria information included in Admission, Continued Stay Discharge Criteria (Yellowbook). These documents may be found in the bidder library located at:  http://dhhs.ne.gov/behavioral_health/Pages/behBiddersLibrary2014.aspx

	7. Reference from RFP Page 41 Question Type Requirement

RFP states that "The individual Regions and practitioners will be responsible for maintaining their own practice management systems that will report information to the DBH CDS in standardized formats."
Explain the solution/mechanism that is currently used for sending data from Practice Management System to CDS.
	Please see answer to Question 5.


	8. Reference from RFP Page 41 Question Type Requirement

What are the expected external systems/applications that CDS should interface with for data?
	The system must interface with Regions and provider systems.  A list of current software being utilized in the Regions and by contracted providers is found in Table 1 on page 46.  The envisioned system architecture is depicted in Figure 3 on page 51 in the RFP.

	9. Reference from RFP Page 42 Question Type Requirement

RFP states that "The DBH CDS will be used for data collection, reporting, analytics, authorizations, and billing reconciliations for the Community Based Services section as funded through DBH"

Does "Data Collection" refer to the user interface screens in new CDS where the the regions and practioners could enter the data required by DBH?
	Data collection includes initial gathering of information from the provider, verification of information and subsequent transmission. Data collection must include both a user interface function in which Regions and providers could enter data manually and an automated import via interfaces between the CDS and existing EHR and practice management systems. 

	10. Reference from RFP Page 42 Question Type Requirement

RFP states that "The three Regional Centers of DBH are under a separate data system contract for collection and management of their service data though data integration between the two systems is critical."

What is the format/solution that will be used by Regional Centers to send data to CDS?
	The Regional Centers currently utilize Avatar, a Netsmart product.  An interface solution is expected to be included in the proposal.  See Table 1 and Figure 1 in the RFP, pages 46 and 47, respectively. Additional information on the current Avatar layout is located in the bidder library at: http://dhhs.ne.gov/behavioral_health/Pages/behBiddersLibrary2014.aspx

	11. Reference from RFP Page 42 Question Type Requirement

RFP states that "The DBH CDS will be used for data collection, reporting, analytics, authorizations, and billing reconciliations for the Community Based Services section as funded through DBH"

Please provide more details on your expectations for Analytics as a requirement for CDS?
	Data analytics are expected to support reporting of utilization, performance, quality, efficacy, funding, and other dimensions of reporting as listed throughout the RFP and further described in Exhibit 1 and 2. Proposed solutions should include explanation of the analytical capability of the system proposed.
Further details of the current business practices and standards, including available data dictionaries and collection templates, addressed in this RFP may be found in the bidder library located at: http://dhhs.ne.gov/behavioral_health/Pages/behBiddersLibrary2014.aspx

	12. Reference from RFP Page 42 Question Type Requirement

RFP states that "The DBH CDS will be used for data collection, reporting, analytics, authorizations, and billing reconciliations for the Community Based Services section as funded through DBH"

Please provide more details on billing reconciliations as a requirement for CDS?
	Further description of the billing reconciliation process can be found in Figure 2 on page 48 of the RFP and also described in the bidder library located at: http://dhhs.ne.gov/behavioral_health/Pages/behBiddersLibrary2014.aspx
Please see Functional Requirements Traceability Matrix in Attachment A, Form A.1, FRTM-29 through FRTM-37, for more on the billing reconciliation requirements.

	13. Reference from RFP Page 44 Question Type Solution / Technology

Does the STATE have any preference with respect to the technology (.Net, Java …) that should be used for implementing CDS?
	No, the State does not have a preference with respect to the technology to be used for implementation.

	14. Reference from RFP Page 44 Question Type Solution / Technology

Does the STATE have any preference with respect to the solution/Tools to be used for Data Analytics?
	No, the State does not have a preference for data analytics tools.

	15. Reference from RFP Page 44 Question Type Solution / Technology

Does the STATE have any preference with respect to the Database (Oracle, SQL Server ….) to be used in CDS?
	No, the State does not have a preference for the type of database proposed. 

	16. Reference from RFP Page 45 Question Type Requirement

Should the data from Regions and Practioners be moved to CDS on a real-time basis or can it be done using a Batch Job that gets executed at regular intervals?
	Authorizations must occur in real-time. The data underlying the authorization process could also be updated or transmitted in real-time, but the bidder may propose a frequency selectable (nightly, weekly, etc.) batch solution.  



	17. Reference from RFP Page 45 Question Type Requirement

RFP states that "A monthly billing documentation process, known as the Turn-Around Document (TAD) report, is utilized by the Regions and providers to verify accuracy of services and units provided prior to submitting for payment of their services and expenses."

How is TAD created?
	The current process utilizing the TAD is described in the BHS Web Training Manual 2013 in the bidder library located at: http://dhhs.ne.gov/behavioral_health/Pages/behBiddersLibrary2014.aspx 

	18. Reference from RFP Page 45 Question Type Requirement

In continuation to the above question, should the new CDS create TAD?
	The system must provide the ability to verify accuracy of services and units provided prior to submitting for payment of their services and expenses, whether that is a TAD or an equivalent report that accomplishes the same purpose.  

	19. Reference from RFP Page 45 Question Type Requirement

How is TAD report sent to Regions?
	Currently, the TAD is submitted to Regions as a paper copy printed from data entered by providers into the current data system.

	20. Reference from RFP Page 50 Question Type Requirement

Please confirm that the scope of the vendors responsibility is to complete the following:
1. Design, Develop, Test and Deploy the User Interfaces for Data Collection.
2. Design, Develop, Test and Deploy the Reports.
3. Data Migration
4. Train the Trainer
5. 12 months warranty (Post Inplementation Phase)
	The contractor will be required to provide the services for all project phases and requirements of the RFP, including but not limited to the phases listed in Section IV.D.1. 

	21. Reference from RFP Page 50 Question Type Requirement

2 Years OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE (O&M) PHASE and cost involved for this is not in scope of this RFP. Please confirm.
	The Operations and Maintenance (O&M) Phase is within the scope of the RFP. The O&M Phase “…begins when the DBH CDS is fully implemented with all related requirements implemented in accordance with the contract, and DBH has determined that those requirements are fully operational.  This period is anticipated to last an additional two (2) years.” The cost of the O&M phase must be included as requested in Attachment A, Forms A.5 through A.7 of the RFP. 

	22. Reference from RFP Page 42 Question Type Requirement

Please provide the list and details of the reports that should be designed and developed for this new CDS system.
	A bidder should propose the reports which will be included in the new system based upon descriptions for reporting in Exhibit 1 and Exhibit 2. Federal reporting requirements are also included in crosswalk and data dictionaries within the bidders’ library located at: http://dhhs.ne.gov/behavioral_health/Pages/behBiddersLibrary2014.aspx. 
Any additional details may be determined during the planning and analysis phase of the project.

	23. Reference from RFP Page 42 Question Type Requirement

As a continuation to the above question, What should be the format of the reports that are to be created for the new CDS. (On-Screen, PDF, TXT, CSV…)
	Please see FRTM-6 and FRTM-7 in Attachment A, Form A.1. 

	24. Question Type Requirement

How will the report creation be initiated (Manually from the webpage, batch jobs, schedulers ……)
	All options listed in this question should be provided in the proposed solution.  Specific details for reports are expected to be determined during the planning and analysis phase of the project.
Bidder proposal should offer cost effective and timely solutions for all reporting requirements as described throughout the RFP.

	25. Reference from RFP Page 44 Question Type Solution / Technology

Does the STATE have any preference with respect to the solution/Tools to be used for Report creation? (SQL Server Reporting Services, Crystal Report ….)
	No, the State does not have a preference with respect to the solution/tools to be used for report creation.  The bidder must include any hardware and/or software necessary on Form A.5 in Attachment A. 

	26. Reference from RFP Page 55 Question Type Solution / Technology

Does the STATE have any preference with respect to the solution/Tools to be used for Testing task(s)?
	No, the State does not have a preference with respect to the solution/tools to be used for testing task(s).  The bidder must include any hardware and/or software necessary on Form A.5 in Attachment A.

	27. Reference from RFP Page 53

RFP states that "Pilot / Pilot Prototype," is one of the deliverable for Requirements validation phase. What is expected out of this Prototype?
	A fully descriptive or functioning model of the proposed solution is expected for requirements validation and completion.

	28. Reference from RFP Page 42 Question Type Requirement

Please provide the list and details of the User Screens that should be designed and developed for this new CDS system.
	Bidders should propose a solution that meets all the technical and functional requirements contained in the RFP and its attachments. As part of the technical approach, bidders are to include all representative components related to their solution.

Any additional details may be determined during the planning and analysis phase of the project.

	29. Reference from RFP Page 41 Question Type Solution / Technology

Has the State reviewed any COTS products that meet the State requirements
	No, no COTS products that meet the State requirements of this RFP have been reviewed.

	30. Reference from RFP Page 41 Question Type Solution / Technology

If the answer to above question is Yes, please list the COTS products that were reviewed
	Please see answer to Question 29.   

	31. Reference from RFP Page 41 Question Type Solution / Technology

Does the State have any preferred COTS products that it is considering for this RFP
	No, the State does not have a preference for any specific COTS product.  

	32. Question Type Budget

What is the value of established / anticipated budget?
	The State has not established a definitive budget for this project.  Bidders should propose the best solution in response to this RFP. .  

	33. Question Type Budget / Location

Does the STATE have any preference for onsite / offsite / offshore development?
	Please see Section V.A.2.d on page 68 of the RFP regarding offshore development. With respect to onsite / offsite, the State does not have a preference, but the solution must meet HIPAA mandates for data storage, retrieval, and use. 

	34. Question Type Budget / Location

How many onsite vendor resources can be accommodated by the STATE?
	Please describe and detail necessary onsite vendor resources as part of the proposed solution. The State will make efforts to accommodate necessary resources.  

	35. Question Type Budget / Location

Will a proposal with offsite / offshore work scored less?
	Please see answer to Question 33. HIPAA regulations mandate a solution developed and housed within the United States. 

	36. Question Type Budget / Travel Expenses

Does the vendor staff need to travel to other non-primary locations? If yes, please provide the information about of locations, who from vendor staff needs to visit the locations, time/duration and frequency of such visits.
	Yes, travel to locations other than Lincoln, Nebraska, may be necessary for training purposes or at the contractor’s discretion for planning or development purposes. Travel costs should be included as part of the cost of doing business and not as a separate charge.

 

	37. Question Type Budget / Travel Expenses

Will the STATE provide onsite parking for the vendor team members?
Is parking available for vendor personnel free of cost? 
How many parking spots can be made available for vendor personnel?
	No, the State cannot provide onsite parking.  Commercial garages are available within walking distance of the State offices.  

	38. Question Type Documentation

Should the vendor recreate the design documents or modify the existing design documents?
	The bidder must comply with all requirements of the RFP, whether this involves creating or redesigning any documents.

	39. Question Type General

Is there a pre-bid meeting / conference on this RFP, so that the bidding vendor community can better understand the RFP requirements and allow interactive resolution of vendor questions?
	No pre-bid meeting or conference will be conducted, but two rounds of questions and answers are scheduled to clarify the requirements of the RFP.  

	40. Question Type Infrastructure

In the case of offsite service, will the STATE provide VPN access to vendor team members?
	Yes, provided the access is consistent with HIPAA mandates for data storage, retrieval, and use and within the terms of the RFP.  

	41. Question Type Infrastructure

How many environments does the STATE have for this project (for example, Development, Testing, Production)
	The State does not have a pre-determined number of environments available.  The bidder must discuss and describe the number of environments necessary to optimally effect the solution as proposed.

	42. Question Type Infrastructure

Please confirm if the STATE will provide necessary hardware and software for this project in all environments.
	The State will provide the hardware for a State-hosted solution. The State will not provide hardware to the contractor for a contractor-hosted solution.   
In the event of a State-hosted solution, the State reserves the right to acquire the required software and hardware necessary to effect the solution, as defined by the bidder on Form A.5 in Attachment A.  

	43. Question Type Infrastructure

In case of onsite model, please confirm that the STATE will provide necessary office facilities, phones, cubes, pc, software, etc. to the vendor onsite resources?
	The bidder must clearly indicate the number and type of resources expected to be on-site to optimally effect the proposed solution. 
The State has limited space and resources available for on-site resources and will accommodate reasonable requests within the available space and resource limitations.  

	44. Question Type Infrastructure

Please confirm that the STATE is responsible for the costs of acquiring any 3rd party tools / technology (for example, web server, development and test tools, source code control, database, communication infrastructure) required by various phases of the project.
	The bidder must identify all tools and technology necessary to optimally effect the proposed solution.  

For a State-hosted solution, the State reserves the right to acquire the identified software and hardware necessary to effect the solution, as defined by the bidder on Form A.5 in Attachment A.  

For a contractor-hosted solution, the contractor is responsible for acquiring the technology and tools necessary to effect the solution.

Software upgrade costs will be handled according to Section IV.E.4.

	45. Question Type Infrastructure

In the case of offsite service with VPN access, will the STATE provide a laptop with necessary software or will the STATE provide necessary software to be loaded on vendor laptops?
	The State will only provide necessary VPN software for contractor laptops.

	46. Question Type Infrastructure

Please confirm that the user acceptance test environment will have similar capacity as production environment.
	Yes, the user acceptance test environment will have the same or similar capacity as the production environment. 

	47. Question Type Process & Standards

To provide necessary clarifications during design, development and testing how many SMEs will be allocated by the STATE to this project during various phases of the project for further clarifications, reviews etc.?
	The State has no pre-determined limit for SMEs.   The State anticipates that at least two SMEs will be available, but will consider reasonable requests.  The bidder should propose the volume of SMEs necessary to optimally effect the proposed solution.  

	48. Question Type Process & Standards

What is the approximate % allocation of these SMEs to this project?
	The State has no pre-determined allocation for SMEs.   The bidder should propose the allocation of SMEs necessary to optimally effect the proposed solution.  

	49. Question Type Process & Standards

What is the advance notice time to request access to the SMEs described in the question above?
	The bidder should propose the minimal timing necessary to optimally effect the proposed solution.  

	50. Question Type Process & Standards

Does the vendor need to integrate with other STATE or vendor team(s) to deliver a complete solution. If yes, what are such dependencies and what is the integration process?
	The vendor may be expected to integrate with other State or vendor teams. 

Dependencies and necessary integration may be determined in the project planning and analysis stage of the project. 

	51. Question Type Process & Standards

Does STATE want the vendor to use specific templates for project deliverables like Project Reporting, Detailed Requirements Document, Architecture Design document, Deployment Plan, Testing Plan etc or is it expected that Vendor templates will be used for the project?
	No, the State does not require specific templates; however, the bidder is expected to propose templates in the submission of a PMP as defined in the RFP.  

	52. Question Type Process & Standards

In relation to the above question, if a vendor needs to use STATE provided templates, please provide a copy of the templates so that we have a clear understanding of the level of details required.
	Please see answer to Question 51.   

	53. Question Type Process & Standards

Does the STATE have any preference in terms of the software development methodology that could be adopted for this project (Waterfall, AGILE ….)
	No, the State does not have a preference. The bidder must discuss and describe the development methodology proposed to optimally effect the proposed solution.  

	54. Reference from RFP Page 44 Question Type Requirement

RFP states "Currently, many limitations in the overall data system design and architecture exist which do not allow for collecting and reporting of all requisite data." 

Please clarify if this RFP is 
A. An enhancement of an existing application (OR)
B. New application development
	Please see answer to Question 2.

	55. Question Type Requirement

As a follow up the above question, if this is an enhancement of an existing application, please provide the User Manual, Technical Design, Business Requirements documents, Data Model of the current system. 

This information is necessary, so that the vendors can provide a solution that is consistent with the current system
	There is not one complete, centralized data warehouse system currently in place.  This RFP is taking proposals for the development of a data warehouse system.  



	56. Question Type Requirement

As a follow up to the above question, if the RFP is an enhancement of an existing application, which vendor or vendors were responsible for the develpoment and implementation of the current system
	Please see answer to Question 55.     

	57. Question Type Requirement

As a follow up to the above question, is the incumbent vendor eligible to bid on this RFP
	Yes, any bidder may submit a proposal to this RFP. Each bidder’s proposal will be evaluated according to the requirements of this RFP.  

	58. Reference from RFP Page 62 Question Type Solution / Technology

Should any ETL (Extract, Transform, Load) tool be used for Data Migration?
	The State does not have a preference. The bidder must discuss and describe the ETL tool proposed to optimally effect the proposed solution.   

	59. Question Type Resources

Does the STATE have any preference w.r.t. the skills and experience of the vendor team members who will be deployed to the project.
	The skill and experience of a bidder’s proposed team will be evaluated for each proposal.  Please see Section V.A.2.i.


	60. Question Type Security

How will the end users be authenticated for various application functions?
	Attachment A, Form A.1, FRTM-43 indicates, “Role-based secure sign-ons through the use of active directory users and groups” as a requirement.  

	61. Question Type Security

How will the end users be authenticated for various data access?
	Please see answer to Question 60.  

	62. Question Type Solution / Technology

If a role based authentication/authorization solution is to be implemented as part of this project, what is the prescribed STATE standard tool for role based authentication/authorization?
	The State does not have a standard tool for role-based authentication. The bidder must discuss and describe the role-based authentication tool proposed to optimally effect the proposed solution. 

The bidder must include any hardware and/or software necessary on Form A.5 in Attachment A. 

	63. Question Type Solution / Technology

If a workflow is to be implemented as part of this project, what is the prescribed STATE standard tool for work flow management?
	The State does not have a prescribed standard tool for work-flow management. The bidder must discuss and describe the work-flow management tool proposed to optimally effect the proposed solution. 

The bidder must include any hardware and/or software necessary on Form A.5 in Attachment A.

	64. Question Type Testing

Please confirm that the STATE will provide the vendor with production data for testing purposes so that vendors can verify accuracy of the new developed system.
	Yes, the State will provide the contractor with production data for testing provided the access to data is consistent with HIPAA mandates for data storage, retrieval, and use and within the terms of the RFP.

	65. Question Type Testing

How many business days of User Acceptance Testing does the STATE expect to perform for this application?
	The bidder must discuss and describe the number of business days of User Acceptance Testing proposed to optimally effect the proposed solution.

	66. Question Type Testing

Would the STATE like to perform Performance\Stress testing?
	The bidder must discuss and describe the testing proposed to optimally effect the proposed solution.

	67. Question Type Testing

If non-functional testing is included in the scope, will the STATE provide necessary tools to perform the testing in its environment? If yes, please list such tool(s).
	Please see answer to Question 66.  The bidder must include any hardware and/or software necessary on Form A.5 in Attachment A. 

	68. Question Type Testing

Will STATE assume responsibility for performing integration testing from the perspective of external systems not included in the project?
	Yes, the State will assume responsibility for performing integration testing from the perspective of external systems not included in the project. 

	69. Question Type Testing

Please confirm that, the STATE will provide sample or test data for user and system testing.
	Yes, the State will provide the contractor with sample or test data for user and system testing provided the access to data is consistent with HIPAA mandates for data storage, retrieval, and use and within the terms of the RFP.

	70. Question Type Testing

Please confirm that the user acceptance test environment will have same data as in the production environment.
	Yes, the user acceptance test environment will have the same data as in the production environment, provided the access to data is consistent with HIPAA mandates for data storage, retrieval, and use and within the terms of the RFP.

	71. Question Type Testing

Please confirm that, the STATE will be responsible for data loading in the UAT and production environments.
	Yes, the State will be responsible for data loading in the UAT and production environments. 

	72. Question Type Testing

Will the STATE conduct User Acceptance Testing after every deliverable (Questionaire interface / Reports / ……) or will conduct only one UAT?
	The State does not anticipate conducting User Acceptance Testing after every deliverable. Specific details for User Acceptance Testing may be determined during the planning and analysis phase of the project.

The bidder must discuss and describe the User Acceptance Testing proposed to optimally effect the proposed solution.

	73. Question Type Testing

Please confirm that the UAT scripts be available to the vendor, so that the vendor can address the problems discovered during the UAT.
	The contractor will be responsible for creating test scripts in this project.  

	74. Question Type Training

Will the training be conducted in the UAT environment or in a different environment?
	The State anticipates that the training will be conducted in the UAT environment.  Specific details for training may be determined during the planning and analysis phase of the project.

The bidder must discuss and describe the training proposed to optimally effect the proposed solution.

	75. Question Type Training

Will the STATE provide training facilities/conference rooms, etc.? If yes, will the STATE also help in scheduling such facilities?
	Yes, the State will provide reasonable training facilities/conference rooms, etc. and will reasonably assist in scheduling such facilities.
The bidder must discuss and describe the training proposed to optimally effect the proposed solution.

	76. Question Type Warranty

What is the turnaround time required for the POST IMPLEMENTATION SUPPORT PHASE items for different severity levels?
	The bidder must discuss and describe the standard turn-around time required during the post-implementation support period to optimally effect the proposed solution.

	77. Is the State Purchasing Bureau requesting a “Fixed Bid” price for the complete solution?
	Yes, State Purchasing Bureau is requiring a “fixed bid” price for the complete solution. 

	78. Will the State Purchasing Bureau entertain payment models other than “Fixed Bid” given the need to perform analysis and design to finalize requirements?
	No. Please see answer to Question 77. 

	79. Will the State Purchasing Bureau reconsider their decision to not publish evaluation criteria prior to opening?  Understanding the scoring will allow responders to focus on the parts most important to the state.
	No, State Purchasing Bureau does not publish evaluation criteria prior to opening to maintain the integrity of the RFP process.

	80. Will the State Purchasing Bureau further define subcontractors?  Should a vendor hire an independent contractor to perform technical coding (for example), would that fit the definition of a subcontractor in the State Purchasing Bureau’s determination?  If so, will the State Purchasing Bureau relax requirements to specify subcontractors in the original proposal? (Page 15, Section I)
	Please refer to Section III.I and Section V.A.2.j for more information regarding subcontractors. 



	81. Will the State Purchasing Bureau consider solutions developed entirely and specifically for this project?  (Page 41, Section 1)
	Please see Section IV.A.1, page 41, for the types of solutions the State will consider. 

	82. Will the State Purchasing Bureau provide examples of current reports to be replicated?
	Exhibits 1 and 2 provide details of the reports currently being generated.  
Further details of the current business practices and standards, including available data dictionaries, federal reporting requirements, and collection templates, addressed in this RFP may be found in the bidder library located at: http://dhhs.ne.gov/behavioral_health/Pages/behBiddersLibrary2014.aspx
Any additional details may be determined during the planning and analysis phase of the project.

	83. Will the State Purchasing Bureau provide the data model for the existing system to support analysis of the data conversation work?
	There is not one complete, centralized data warehouse system currently in place.  Figure 1 on page 47 illustrates the current data flow.
Further details of the current business practices and standards, including available data dictionaries, federal reporting requirements, and collection templates, addressed in this RFP may be found in the bidder library located at: http://dhhs.ne.gov/behavioral_health/Pages/behBiddersLibrary2014.aspx

	84. Will the State Purchasing Bureau consider relaxing requirements to specifically name the project team members?  Will the State Purchasing Bureau consider allowing contractors to name the project team members at contract execution instead?
	Section V.A.2.i, is hereby amended as follows: 
“i. SUMMARY OF BIDDER’S PROPOSED PERSONNEL/MANAGEMENT APPROACH

The bidder must present a detailed description of its proposed approach to the management of the project.

The bidder must at minimum identify the specific professionals serving as key personnel who will work on the State’s project if their company is awarded the contract resulting from this Request for Proposal. The names and titles of the key personnel of the team proposed for assignment to the State project shall be identified in full, with a description of the team leadership, interface and support functions, and reporting relationships. The primary work assigned to each person should also be identified….”

All other requirements of Section V.A.2.i remain in effect.
It is acceptable to the State to identify the remaining team members at contract award.

	85. RFP Section Reference Terms and Conditions: HH Payment; Cost Proposal Requirements – Payment Schedule; (Form A-6 – Deliverable Fixed Cost Breakdown) RFP Page Number 28, 74, (31)
The referenced sections explain that the State will render payment to contractor when the terms and conditions of the contract and specifications have been satisfactorily completed on the part of the contractor as solely determined by the State. Will the State accept proposed benchmarks with the deliverable schedule for payments?  For example multiple payments for benchmarks within a deliverable such as 3.0 Design or 4.0 Development, Interfaces, Integration 
	Please refer to Attachment A, Form A.6 for detailed instructions to identify the costs. The payments will coincide with the completion of deliverables or tasks as identified by the bidder on Form A.6.

	86. RFP Section Reference IV. Project Description and Scope of Work – A. Project Overview RFP Page Number 41

The RFP states “Please note that the DBH CDS is not intended to be a practice management system that contains clinical scheduling, assessment, treatment planning, or progress note functions".  However, Attachment 1, FRTM 18 appears to indicate the need for a clinical assessment application.  Please clarify the purpose of FRTM 17 through FRTM 28 and how these functions will be outside the requested functionality.
	FRTM-17 through FRTM-28 (Attachment A, Form A.1) are specifically for authorization of service, not treatment services.  

Further details of the current business practices and standards, including available data dictionaries and collection templates, addressed in this RFP may be found in the bidder library located at: http://dhhs.ne.gov/behavioral_health/Pages/behBiddersLibrary2014.aspx

	87. RFP Section Reference IV. Project Description and Scope of Work – A. Project Overview RFP Page Number 41

The RFP states that no additional data entry is required to move data from the provider, through the Region, to the State.

Please clarify.  Is there an option for the DBH CDS to intake information from the providers directly, without going through the Region, as long as the Regions have reports on this data?  
Alternatively, is it required for the Regions to aggregate the data outside of the DBH CDS?
	Yes, the State would expect functionality to include role-based direct entry of data into the CDS as necessary in addition to automated programmatic interface functionality. 

No, the Regions are not expected to aggregate data outside the CDS. Regions should, however, have access and ability to compile data for analysis and reports as defined by role-based permissions.  

	88. RFP Section Reference IV. Project Description and Scope of Work – A. Project Overview RFP Page Number 41

The RFP states individual Regions and practitioners will be responsible for maintaining their own practice management systems that will report information to the DBH CDS in standardized formats. Page 46 outlines approximately 31 Practice Management Systems.

What is the vision for getting the data into standardized formats - is this envisioned as the DBH CDS role?
	Yes, data must be normalized and rationalized by the DBH CDS.   

Providers and Regions will report to the CDS through interfaces built to accept files in standardized formats from the practice management systems in place now and upgraded in the future in response to changing federal and State data needs.
Further details of the current business practices and standards, including available data dictionaries and collection templates, addressed in this RFP may be found in the bidder library located at: http://dhhs.ne.gov/behavioral_health/Pages/behBiddersLibrary2014.aspx

	89. RFP Section Reference IV. Project Description and Scope of Work – - C. Current Project Environment – Figure 1 RFP Page Number 47

This diagram shows the Managed Care System as input into the DBH CDS.

Who/what is this?
	For purposes of Figure 1 on page 47, the Managed Care System refers to the current data system contractor.



	90. RFP Section Reference IV. Project Description and Scope of Work – - E. Technical Requirements – Figure 3 RFP Page Number 51

In regards to this diagram, please elaborate on Provider Authorizations by web-based data entry and the clinical PM Systems support.
	The envisioned CDS will allow for a real-time response automated authorization system using the information entered at the provider level.  Request and response will be based on clinical criteria outlined in regulations of BHD and presented in the Yellow Book in the bidders’ library located at: http://dhhs.ne.gov/behavioral_health/Pages/behBiddersLibrary2014.aspx

	91. RFP Section Reference IV. Project Description and Scope of Work – - E. Technical Requirements – Figure 3 RFP Page Number 51

The diagram refers to the ASO/MSO function, but there is no response required within the RFP related to these functions specifically.  What is the expectation of the contractor regarding these functions and experience?
	FRTM-17 through FRTM-28 (Attachment A, Form A.1.) provide more detail about the authorization process requirements.  The proposed solution is expected to include the system for the authorization process. This request does not include Administrative Service Organization duties.   The current authorization system is further described in the bidders’ library located at:  http://dhhs.ne.gov/behavioral_health/Pages/behBiddersLibrary2014.aspx

	92. RFP Section Reference IV. Project Description and Scope of Work – - E. Technical Requirements – a. Overall System Architecture Requirements RFP Page Number 51

Please provide the number of providers the State expects will require interfaces with the CDS.
	DBH-funded providers and coalitions are listed in Exhibit 3 on pages 86 and 87.  Please also see Table 1 on page 46 of the RFP for a list of programs being utilized by providers and Regions. 
The State provides funding for approximately 85 behavioral health treatment providers across nearly 200 locations and approximately 50 prevention agencies and coalitions. A listing of likely prevention and behavioral health service providers is given in Exhibit 3 on pages 86 and 87.  Please also include each of the 6 Regional Behavioral Health Authorities and make provisions to facility specific service location for multi office agencies.  
There is not a direct 1:1 correlation between providers and interfaces required as some providers may be using the same system and thus be able to use the same interface connection.

	93. RFP Section Reference IV. Project Description and Scope of Work – - E. Technical Requirements – a. Overall System Architecture Requirements RFP Page Number 51

Please define the expected number of “other” entities and the projected number of interfaces that may be required with those entities.
	At this time, no “other entities” are known.  This was included as a representative placeholder for future potential interfaces.  



	94. RFP Section Reference IV. Project Description and Scope of Work – - E. Technical Requirements – Figure 3 RFP Page Number 51

Please describe the anticipated interfaces to and from the Medicaid MMIS system.  Does this include Medicaid eligibility, and claims?
	Additional details for interfaces including MMIS may be determined in the project planning and analysis stage of the project.  


	95. RFP Section Reference Form A-1 FRTM 18 RFP Page Number 8

FRTM 18 states automated rules-base authorization functionality to assist or replace call center interactions

Please describe who will be doing the authorizations that cannot be automated through rules-based logic.
	A high volume of exceptions are not currently experienced nor is a high volume anticipated. The authorization system is expected to be a highly automated rules-based function. Exceptions may be handled by DBH. 
The bidder must discuss and describe a method for handling such exceptions as part of the proposed solution.

	96. RFP Section Reference Form A-1 FRTM 22 RFP Page Number 9

FRTM 22 refers to the capability to verify authorized services against the benefit plan.

Will the benefit plan vary by Region, or will the same benefit plan apply to all Regions?
	The benefit plan may vary by Region.  The authorization system must be able to recognize available services by Region such that authorization can be allowed. 

	97. RFP Section Reference Form A-1 FRTM 26 RFP Page Number 9

FRTM 26 refers to entry of appeal level information for authorization requests.

Who/What is determining a denial from which an appeal can be generated?  
Are you envisioning that the provider could appeal a request by entering information into the system?
	The State is envisioning an initial process that is automated to determine if individuals meet clinical criteria for service levels.  
Additionally, an appeals process is envisioned that is staffed with appropriate clinical credentials for individuals seeking services. Exceptions and denial reconsiderations may be handled by DBH.
Please also see answer to Question 95.

	98. RFP Section Reference Form A-1 FRTM  31 RFP Page Number 10

FRTM 31 refers to reconciling services provided to provider billing data.

We are not certain what is being reconciled to what.  Are you envisioning that the selected vendor would go into a provider office to determine, from medical records, actual services performed to services billed?
	No, the contractor would not go to a provider’s office or complete an audit of records. The Region or the State would fulfil that function. The CDS would be used to confirm receipt of necessary documentation to justify payment.
Please see Figure 2 on page 48 and documentation in the bidders’ library describing the current billing and reconciliations process. 
The bidder library is located at: http://dhhs.ne.gov/behavioral_health/Pages/behBiddersLibrary2014.aspx   

	99. RFP Section Reference Form A-1 FRTM 32 and 33 RFP Page Number 10

FRTM 32 and 33 refers to verify billing accuracy with respect to payment basis, and to service authorizations.

Can you be more explicit about your vision for these two items?  Are you looking for accuracy?
	Please see answer to Question 98.  The proposed system must ensure proper authorization for services has been obtained prior to billing.     

	100. What levels of data standardization exist today, 
what work efforts are currently under way to increase levels of standardization?
	Data rationalization and normalization are expected to be a function of the DBH CDS proposed.  
Standardization is one of the expected outcomes of the RFP.  
Further details of the current business practices and standards, including available data dictionaries and collection templates, addressed in this RFP may be found in the bidder library located at: http://dhhs.ne.gov/behavioral_health/Pages/behBiddersLibrary2014.aspx

	101. Are forms standardized across the organization?
	Many forms are standardized across organizations supported in whole or part by the Regions, either through State templates presented at http://dhhs.ne.gov/behavioral_health/Pages/behBiddersLibrary2014.aspx or within the Regions’ processes.  The CDS system will need to rationalize and normalize data from different source inputs.

	102. Is IT support centralized or decentralized?
	IT support is centralized. 

	103. How many different locations are there? 
Will all facilities be involved in the initial roll-out?
	Please see answer to Question 92.

Bidder must describe and discuss the roll-out model proposed to optimally effect the proposed solution.

	104. Does the state prefer a cloud/hosted system or a client sever?
	Please see Section IV.A.1 on page 41 for additional information. 

	105. Are there any current electronic medical systems in place that would require migration of the data? 
If so, how much? 
What format is the data in?
	Yes.  As part of the current data system there are several entities that routinely interface with the current data system contractor on a regular schedule.  Section IV.C.3.b.5, page 49, is a description of the major interfaces.  
The specific quantity is unknown at this time.  Specific details for data migration may be determined during the planning and analysis phase of the project.
Further details of the current business practices and standards, including available data dictionaries and collection templates, addressed in this RFP may be found in the bidder library located at: http://dhhs.ne.gov/behavioral_health/Pages/behBiddersLibrary2014.aspx

	106. How many concurrent users through-out the system?
	For information on expected data system users, please see Overall System Architecture Requirements described in Section IV.E.2.a, page 50, of the RFP.  

	107. How many In-patient beds?
	The number of in-patient beds needed for DBH-funded capacity varies. See list of services in Exhibit 2.  This question appears to be outside the scope of the requirements of this RFP.

	108. What out-patient services are currently being provided?
	Please see list of services in Exhibit 2. 

	109. What files are you looking to migrate as part of the contract (e.g., ADT, Labs, x-Rays Medications)?
	Standard, alpha numeric, flat file records are expected to be stored. No documentation attachments are expected.

	110. RFP Section Reference III. Terms & Conditions RFP Page Number 8

Is section III. Terms and Conditions to be included as an attachment to the proposal or included in one of the mandatory requirement sections?
	Section III should be included as part of the RFP response in the order identified in the RFP.

	111. RFP Section Reference IV.A-Project Overview RFP Page Number 41

The lead in sentence states “The bidder must provide the following information in response to this Request for Proposal.” Is the intent that the bidder describe how the sections listed (Project Overview, Project Environment, and Current Project Environment) will be changed due to the proposal or is this section presented as standalone background information?
	The Project Overview is provided as background information; however, understanding of this information is expected to be demonstrated through a bidder’s response to the technical approach.

	112. RFP Section Reference IV.D-Scope of Work RFP Page Number 49

Is the purpose of this section to provide standalone background information for completion of Attachment A? Or, is a narrative response required to this section along with the completion of Attachment A?
	The bidder should propose how it intends to complete each of the requirements within the narrative of the bidder’s response as well as complete all forms in Attachment A.  Some repetition is anticipated. Please review Section V for RFP response instructions.

	113. RFP Section Reference IV. E-I-Technical Requirements RFP Page Number 50

Is the purpose of this section to provide standalone background information for completion of Attachment A? Or, is a narrative response required to this section along with the completion of Attachment A?
	Please see answer to Question 112.

	114. RFP Section Reference V.A.1 & V.A.2 Corporate Overview RFP Page Number 67

Is the response required for this mandatory requirement a narrative response to V.A.1 & V.A.2?
	Section V provides an outline to inform the bidder of the required information.  Section V.A.1 refers to the Request for Proposal form, which must be submitted and signed in ink. The bidder should present the information required in Section V.A.2 as a narrative. 

	115. RFP Section Reference V.A.3. Technical Approach RFP Page Number 71
Does completion of the technical approach requirement include a narrative response to the items listed in V.A.3. starting on page 71 as well as completion of Attachment A.1-A.4? Or, is the information required included in Attachment A.1-A.4?
	Please see answer to Question 112.

	116. RFP Section Reference V.B. Cost Proposal RFP Page Number 73
Does completion of the Cost Proposal Requirements include a narrative response to V.B. starting on page 73 as well as completion of Attachment A.5-A.7? Or, is the information required included in Attachment A.5-A.7?
	No, a narrative response is not expected for the cost proposal. The cost proposals must include Form A.5 through A.8. 

	117. RFP Section Reference A, B, B1, etc… RFP Page Number 41,42,43
Throughout the RFP, data integration is discussed; can you explain the level of access the State will provide to all of the underlying tools of the data systems?
	For systems within direct State control, the State will provide necessary access.  For systems with which the State partners, the contractor and the State will need to work in collaboration with those partners to develop interfaces and integrate data to the CDS. 

Further details of the current business practices and standards, including available data dictionaries and collection templates, addressed in this RFP may be found in the bidder library located at: http://dhhs.ne.gov/behavioral_health/Pages/behBiddersLibrary2014.aspx

	118. RFP Section Reference 3a RFP Page Number 45

It is stated on page 45 that the “Nebraska Prevention Information Reporting System (NPIRS)” is used to help report prevention activities. Other than the clinical, practice management and care management software systems listed in Table 1, are there systems used to report on treatment and mental health activities?  In other words, is there currently a system that is used to compile all of these data for standardized federal reporting requirement submission, such as TEDS, etc?  Is there a data warehouse mechanism currently in place?
	The State currently receives two (2) treatment system extracts: one is from the current data system contractor of persons being served in the treatment system, and one is the AVATAR extract. Additional stand-alone data sets are received; however, there is not one complete data warehouse system currently in place.  This RFP is seeking proposals for the development of a warehouse where data can be integrated, analyzed, and reported or extracted to fulfill state required reporting.  
Further details of the current business practices and standards, including available data dictionaries and collection templates, addressed in this RFP may be found in the bidder library located at: http://dhhs.ne.gov/behavioral_health/Pages/behBiddersLibrary2014.aspx

	119. RFP Section Reference A RFP Page Number 1

What is the timeline for the deployment of this system? May the offeror propose a phased approach?
	Both cost and available resources will determine the timeline for deployment. Bidder must describe and discuss the deployment proposed to optimally effect the proposed solution.

	120. RFP Section Reference A1 RFP Page Number 41,42

On pages 41 and 42, the RFP states that “The DBH CDS could take the form of customizing an existing system, using a Commercial Off-The-Shelf (COTS) system that can be configured, modified, or enhanced to support the objectives herein, or a hybrid of the two.  The State is not looking for a Software-as-a-Service (SaaS) model.” If the offeror proposed a SaaS model for hosting the application that the State could administer would this be an acceptable offer?
	The State is not looking for a SaaS solution. Proposed solutions should allow for greater self-administration, customization, and flexibility. 

	121. RFP Section Reference E3 RFP Page Number 51

It is stated in the RFP that “the State may have as much as 5 gigabytes of historical treatment records on file from the current contractor system for the previous three (3) years…” Could you please provide additional information regarding the current system in place?
	Further details of the current business practices and standards, including available data dictionaries and collection templates, addressed in this RFP may be found in the bidder library located at: http://dhhs.ne.gov/behavioral_health/Pages/behBiddersLibrary2014.aspx
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